) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

NOTICE OF COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 27" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2016

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38,
Cook County, Illinois will hold a Regular Meeting on the 27" day of October, 2016 at 5:00 o’clock p.m.,
for the Closed Session meeting in Room 260 and at 5:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library
Technology Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois.

AGENDA
Room 252 (Closed Session — 5 p.m.)
L. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Present Absent Present Absent
Scott Wallace Melinda Kelly
Suzanne Nelson Timothy Kollar
Danielle Boros Stacey Van Metre

Donna Keller

I1. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING PURCHASE OR
LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY

Library Technology Center (Open Session — 5:30 p.m.)

II1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Present Absent Present Absent
Scott Wallace Melinda Kelly
Suzanne Nelson Timothy Kollar
Danielle Boros Stacey Van Metre

Donna Keller

Iv. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment)
V. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Minutes of the September 19, 2016, Regular Meeting and Closed Session
B. Approval of Annual Application for Recognition of Schools

VI OLD BUSINESS

A. Discussion of Potential Facility Projects
a. Presentation of Financial Projections
b. Presentation from DLA Architects
B. FY18 Strategic Plan Update

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Presentation and Discussion of Student Assessment Data
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment)
X. ADJOURNMENT

Dated the 24™ day of October, 2016.

Chl—Eh—

Chike Erokwu
Secretary, Board of Education
Kenilworth School District No. 38

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 19™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2016

The meeting was called to order by President Scott Wallace at 5:37 p.m. Upon Roll Call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Melinda Kelly,
Mrs. Donna Keller, Mrs. Danielle Boros and Mrs. Stacey Van Metre. Mr. Tim Kollar was absent.

Mr. Scott Wallace entertained a motion to go into Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION TO CONSIDER SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE
MATTERS AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC
BODY

Mrs. Mindy Kelly moved, seconded by Mrs. Stacey Van Metre, to go into Closed Session at 5:38 p.m. to
consider specific employee matters and the purchase or lease of real property for use of the public body.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

The Board entered Closed Session at 5:38 p.m.

The Board returned to Open Session at 7:37 p.m.

Upon Roll Call, the following board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs.
Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Melinda Kelly and Mrs. Donna Keller, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. Tim Kollar and
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal

Mr. Besset Sabourin Director of Student Services;

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator

Faculty: Mrs. Allison Drew (Videographer), Mrs. Alison Gilchrist, Mrs. Barb Rodriguez, Ms. Jennifer
Peterson, Mrs. Toula Sideris, Mrs. Julie Campanaro, Mrs. Carol Rosenberg, Mrs. Cathleen Sheridan

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Community: Mrs. Cynthia Helle, Mrs. Paget Bahr, Mrs. Linda Forsberg, Mrs. Michelle Kane, Mr. John
Borovicka, Mrs. Eleanor Prince (League of Women Voters), Mr. Chad Emighol, Mrs. Laurel Lien. About
50 additional members from the Kenilworth community were also in attendance.

FINANCIAL HEARING

Dr. LeRoy gave a presentation summarizing the expected revenues, expenses and assumptions that went
into the FY 17 budget. Dr. LeRoy explained that this year's budget will remain largely similar to last year's
budget. Dr. LeRoy noted that the budget includes a $3 million placeholder to cover any potential facility
projects started during the 2016-2017 school year. The Board is in the preliminary stages of planning for
potential building updates and all key stakeholders will be involved in the process.

RECOGNITION OF APPRECIATION

Mr. Wallace presented resolutions of appreciation from the Kenilworth Board of Education to The Joseph
Sears School Booster Club and The Joseph Sears School Parents' Volunteer Association. Resolutions
were presented to the following: 2014-2015 Booster Club; the 2015-2016 Booster Club; the 2014-2015
JSSPVA; and the 2015-2016 JSSPV A. The resolutions are as stated:

WHEREAS, during the 2014-2015 school year, The Joseph Sears School Booster Club, under the
exceptional leadership of Paget Bahr, greatly enhanced the educational quality of The Joseph Sears
School, Kenilworth School District No. 38, Cook County, Kenilworth, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Club provided a forum for quality communication, facilitated and supported
volunteer service related to the athletic opportunities for students and raised funds to support the athletic

programs, spiritwear and field days; and

WHEREAS, the Club’s generosity of time and monetary resources provided for the sponsoring of
athletic clinics, girls soccer uniforms as well as equipment and scholarship support for students; and

WHEREAS, the Club’s leadership served as a resource to the Administration and Athletic
Director to secure effective coaches for athletic teams; and

WHEREAS, all of the aforementioned will significantly enhance teaching and learning, as well as
the overall sustainability of quality services to students at The Joseph Sears School;

THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY
RESOLVED, that the grateful appreciation of the Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of
Education, Administration, Faculty, Parents, Students and Community be made a matter of public record;

and

THAT a copy of this Resolution be presented to The Joseph Sears School Booster Club.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

WHEREAS, during the 2015-2016 school year The Joseph Sears School Booster Club, under the
exceptional leadership of Michael Kelly, greatly enhanced the educational quality of The Joseph Sears
School, Kenilworth School District No. 38, Cook County, Kenilworth, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Club provided a forum for quality communication, facilitated and supported
volunteer service related to the athletic opportunities for students and raised funds to support the athletic
programs, spiritwear and field days; and

WHEREAS, the Club’s generosity of time and monetary resources provided for the sponsoring of
athletic clinics, boys basketball uniforms, as well as equipment and scholarship support for students; and

WHEREAS, the Club’s leadership served as a resource to the Administration and Athletic
Director to secure effective coaches for athletic teams; and

WHEREAS, all of the aforementioned will significantly enhance teaching and learning, as well as
the overall sustainability of quality services to students at The Joseph Sears School;

THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY

RESOLVED, that the grateful appreciation of the Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of
Education, Administration, Faculty, Parents, Students and Community be made a matter of public record;
and

THAT a copy of this Resolution be presented to The Joseph Sears School Booster Club.

WHEREAS, during the 2014-2015 school year the Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer Association,
under the exceptional leadership of Lisa O’Rourke, greatly enhanced the educational quality of The
Joseph Sears School, Kenilworth School District No. 38, Cook County, Kenilworth, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Association provided a forum for quality communication, facilitated and
supported volunteer service and raised extraordinary funds to support enrichment programs and other
related purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Association’s generosity of time and monetary resources provided for the
purchase of a laminator for the teachers’ workroom, enhancement of literacy materials including grade
level specific contributions to classroom libraries, novels, both fiction and non-fiction and K-8 French
literature; additional classroom equipment for science, and practical arts classroom equipment. These
additions are accompanied by a host of other support for the performing arts with the purchase of
percussion equipment for band and orchestra, funding for student enrichment programs, and the support
of parent education, as well as professional development; and

WHEREAS, all of the aforementioned will significantly enhance teaching and learning, as well as
the overall sustainability of quality services to students at The Joseph Sears School,

THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

RESOLVED, that the grateful appreciation of the Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of
Education, Administration, Teachers, Parents, Students and Community be made a matter of public
record; and

THAT a copy of this Resolution be presented to The Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer
Association.

WHEREAS, during the 2015-2016 school year The Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer
Association, under the exceptional leadership of Julie Kalainov, greatly enhanced the educational quality
of The Joseph Sears School, Kenilworth School District No. 38, Cook County, Kenilworth, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Association provided a forum for quality communication, facilitated and
supported volunteer service and raised extraordinary funds to support enrichment programs and other
related purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Association’s generosity of time and monetary resources provided for a
technology grant to purchase equipment and technologies to enhance student learning throughout the
entire School including the first app-enabled “Sphero” Robotic Ball to be utilized by smart phone and
tablet; design and implementation of the makerspace; enhancement of literacy materials including grade
level specific contributions to classroom libraries, novels, both fiction and non-fiction and “big books”,
and other literacy materials. These additions are accompanied by a host of other support for the
performing arts with the purchase of equipment for band and orchestra, support for physical education
with funding for the installation of the high ropes course and climbing wall additions and sound
equipment, funding for student enrichment programs, and the support of parent education, as well as
professional development; and

WHEREAS, all of the aforementioned will significantly enhance teaching and learning, as well as
the overall sustainability of quality services to students at The Joseph Sears School;

THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY
RESOLVED, that the grateful appreciation of the Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of
Education, Administration, Teachers, Parents, Students and Community be made a matter of public

record; and

THAT a copy of this Resolution be presented to The Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer
Association.

COMMUNITY PRESENTATION

Mr. Wallace gave a presentation that summarized district finances, facilities, student performance and
stakeholder satisfaction during the community open forum. Mr. Wallace noted that:

* The District continues to operate from a strong financial position.

* The Board has entered the preliminary stages of planning for potential capital improvement
projects. Facility projects will focus on enhancing the student educational experience. The

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

District's financial profile supports upgrades to the facility and the Board will look to make these
upgrades without imposing a referendum on residents.

* Students in the District perform better on average than other New Trier Township districts. Data
from New Trier Township High School indicates that graduating Joseph Sears School students
are taking more advanced courses and earning higher grades when compared to other high school
students.

* Parent and faculty survey satisfaction ratings have declined in some key areas during the past
year. The Board has deployed resources to address issues raised in surveys.

Following Mr. Wallace's presentation, the Board engaged in dialogue with community members on a
variety of related topics.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

Freedom of Information Act Requests — Dr. LeRoy said the district received one FOIA request since
the August board meeting and the request was responded to in a timely manner.

Report from the Superintendent — Dr. LeRoy discussed the traffic situation as it related to construction
on Abbotsford Road. Dr. LeRoy noted that construction is on schedule to be completed by the end of
October.

Report from the Chief School Business Official — Dr. LeRoy opened discussion about the accounts
payable and monthly financials from August. Dr. LeRoy then discussed the district’s procedures used to
support faculty, staff and students during extreme heat days.

Report from the Principal — Mrs. Wallace reported that the longer blocks of time incorporated in the
Master Schedule have supported critical thinking and depth of learning in the classroom. Mrs. Wallace
also discussed the new "Second Cup of Coffee" parent information sessions. A session about children and
technology usage will take place at 8:30 a.m. on Sept. 29. An additional session, which will feature
keynote speaker Carol Jago, will cover English/Language Arts writing standards and the Common Core.
This session will take place at 8:30 a.m. on Oct. 5.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mr. Wallace asked if there were any questions regarding the Consent Agenda. There being no questions,
Mr. Wallace asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda:

Mr. Tim Kollar moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include approval for: minutes for the August 15,
2016 regular meeting and closed session, financial report for August 2016, investment report for August
2016, accounts payable from August 16, 2016 to September 15, 2016, authorization to destroy closed
session recording for March 2016, release of closed session minutes, family medical leave request for
certified employee(s), acceptance of certified employee request for retirement, the proposed fiscal year
2017 budget

The motion was seconded by Mrs. Suzanne Nelson.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

OLD BUSINESS

Review of Revised Assistant Director of Education and Technology Specialist Job Descriptions: Mr.
Wallace noted that a discussion of the revised Assistant Director of Education would be tabled for a
future meeting.

Review of Community Contact Reference Guide and Faculty/Staff Reference Guide — Board
members discussed the contact guides for the community and for faculty and staff. Board members agreed
that the contact guides should be shared on the website and included in the board briefs.

Review of and Approval of Administrator Goals — Dr. LeRoy fielded questions from board members
on the revised administrator goals. It was noted that the goals would be published in a separate section on
the website for retrieval.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to approve the administrator goals as presented. The motion was seconded
by Mrs. Donna Keller.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

NEW BUSINESS

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Ms. Debbie Beluch as .7FTE
Science and .3FTE Instructional Assistant Long-Term Substitute

Mr. Tim Kollar moved, seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller to approve the Recommendation to Hire Ms.
Debbie Beluch as .7FTE Science and .3FTE Instructional Assistant Long-Term Substitute.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7-0.

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Increase Ms. Andrea Urquhart from
JFTE to 1.0FTE Science Teacher

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to approve the increase Ms. Andrea Urquhart from .7FTE to 1.0FTE Science
Teacher. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Mindy Kelly.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7-0.

Discussion and Potential Approval of Instructional Assistant Salary Recommendation for Increase
in Annual Workdays and Daily Work Hours — Mr. Wallace noted that the Board is increasing the
salary of the instructional assistants by 4.1 percent in order to make the District slightly more competitive
with other districts. It was also noted that this was done to align with the increased number of hours
provided for in the new teacher contract.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded my Mrs. Mindy Kelly to approve the instructional assistant salary
recommendation for increase in annual workdays and daily work hours.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Discussion and Potential Approval of Instructional Assistant Medical Benefit Recommendation —
Mr. Wallace noted that the district does not provide medical benefits for instructional assistants except for
a small stipend. Mr. Wallace said that this puts the district at a competitive disadvantage. Mr. Wallace
noted that the recommendation will give instructional assistants benefits similar to those that teachers
receive.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded my Mrs. Stacey Van Metre to approve the instructional assistant
benefits recommendation.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Discussion and Potential Approval to Increase Substitute Salary Rate — Mr. Wallace noted that the
district currently pays substitutes $100/day which is the lowest rate for all surrounding districts. The
proposed increase would bring the pay rate to $115/day which would put the District at the high end of
competitive districts on a daily rate scale.

Mrs. Donna Keller moved, seconded by Mrs. Stacey Van Metre, to increase the substitute salary rate.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Discussion and Potential Approval to Increase Salary for Mr. Max Casas as a 1.0 FTE Technology
Specialist — Dr. LeRoy noted that over the past five years, Mr. Casas’ role has changed tremendously and
as the technology department has changed. Based on what the technology specialist does now, he has
picked up network and hardware responsibilities. Dr. LeRoy said the District is looking to make Mr.
Casas’ salary competitive with neighboring New Trier Township Districts.

Mr. Tim Kollar moved, seconded by Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, to increase the salary for Mr. Max Casas as a
1.0 FTE Technology Specialist.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Stacey Van Metre
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. Tim Kollar
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Melinda Kelly

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

OTHER BUSINESS

The Board set the date for the Faculty/Staff Recognition Breakfast. It was noted that the breakfast would
take place at 7:30 a.m. on Nov. 2.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Wallace invited public comment. There was none.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mr. Wallace entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:59 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mrs.
Donna Keller.

The motion carried with all yeses.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road * Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Attest for Distribution:

Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Scott Wallace, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: October 27, 2016

Re:  Discussion of Potential Facility Projects

Since our last Board meeting, Mrs. Kelly and I have been working with our architects to explore
potential facility projects. After discussing the feedback received from the faculty and staff,
students, administrators and board members, we narrowed the focused to the following priorities:

* Shortage of Classroom/Instructional Space
* Air Conditioning Solutions

* Additional Conference/Meeting Space

¢ Faculty and Staff Lounge

We would like to use tonight’s committee of the whole meeting as a working session for the
Board of Education to thoughtfully and thoroughly discuss the priorities, proposals and timelines
of the potential facility projects. Additionally, I will present an update on the District’s financial
projections and funding options. DLA Architects will also be present to discuss project options
and proposals. Please expect further details to be presented at the meeting.

We look forward to receiving Board feedback on priorities and building solutions. After the
Board discussion, we would like to set a working project timeline to ensure we continue to move

forward.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
October 27, 2016

FY 18 Strategic Plan Update

The Administration is in the initial planning stages to re-establish or modify the District’s
existing Strategic Plan for the 2017-2018 school year.

Our first step is to establish a Strategic Plan Committee to include representatives from

all of the major stakeholders including the following:
o Elementary Teacher

Junior High Teacher

Specials Teacher

Student Services Teacher

Support Staff Member

Elementary Parent

Junior High Parent

Administrative Leadership Team

1-2 Board members

O 0O O O O O OO0

The Administrative Leadership Team will review the current student assessment data,
curriculum and other relevant information to determine if the current strategic plan goals
and objectives are in alignment with the current needs of our District.

The Strategic Plan Committee will hold 2-3 working sessions between November 2016 —
January 2017.

The Strategic Plan Committee will be prepared to submit their proposed FY 18 Strategic
Plan to the Board for review at the February 13" Board of Education Meeting.

After the Board has had the opportunity to review and modify the plan as necessary, the
Administration/Board of Education will hold two Second Cup of Coffee sessions to
present the plan and allow for questions and answers between February and March 2017.
One session will be held in the morning and the other in the evening.

The FY 18 Strategic Plan will be ready for final Board of Education approval at the
March 20" Board meeting.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact

me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal
Date: October 27, 2016

Re:  Fall Data Review for The Joseph Sears School

Background

Each year, The Joseph Sears School administers a variety of assessments to students. The
intention of each assessment is to provide us data about student growth and give us information
to reflect upon our practice and ensure the continued success of all children in the district. The
presentation of district data will be provided at the work session on October 27, 2016. The
presentation will be shared with the faculty on Wednesday, October 26 where they will have an
opportunity to see the information and provide feedback.

Looking at PARCC, a state-mandated assessment, and MAP/MPG, a school-adopted growth
measure, we are able to look at both sets of data and glean information. Both sets of data points
are young. Immature data sets limit the conclusions that can be drawn, but we do use the data
points to look for trends, identify areas of strength and growth and look for the why. Illinois
school districts are required to present school/district report cards at an annual school board
meeting. While the official report card is expected be released by the State on October 31, 2016,
school report card information is available at http://www.illinoisreportcard.com.

In partnership with data, multiple measures are used to gather information about student
performance to inform instruction. Pre and post assessments, supplemental assessments,
observation, formative and summative observations and assessments all play a role in reviewing,
reflecting and refining the academic program.

PARCC

The Assessment:

The PARCC Assessment is the official Illinois State Assessment used for grades 3-8. It is
aligned to Common Core State Standards/Illinois Learning Standards in English Language Arts
(ELA) and Mathematics. The PARCC assessment is considered a more rigorous and modern test
than the ISAT. This is a reflection of the new standards that require students to demonstrate
higher levels of critical thinking, analysis, and problem solving. The assessment is intended to

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



\ ) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

be an indicator of college readiness and an integration of master of skills and extended
application.

PARCC (Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers) was administered for
the first time during the 2014-15 school year. During this administration, the assessment was
given in two parts at two different times in the spring and took approximately 13 hours. The
2015-16 school year was the second year for the PARCC testing in the state of Illinois. By the
2015-16 administration, eight states fully participated in the PARCC assessment.

Scoring:
PARCC Scores are categorized in the following score bands:

[ Level 5: Exceeding Expectations

[] Level 4: Meeting Expectations

[ Level 3: Approaching Expectations

[ Level 2: Partially Meeting Expectations
[ Level 1: Did Not Yet Meet Expectations

Participation:
In administering the PARCC assessment, schools are expected to have a 95% participation rate.

Students were given the opportunity to opt out of the assessment. The district/school encouraged
students and families to take the assessment. In spite of this, there is a large discrepancy
between the 8" grade participation rate and the rest of the school.

ELA 2015 ELA 2016 MATH 2015 MATH 2016
Grade 3 100 96.2 100 96.2
Grade 4 924 98.3 89.4 98.3
Grade 5 95.2 92.5 95.2 95.5
Grade 6 89.6 97.8 89.7 100
Grade 7 85.7 95.8 83.9 97.2
Grade 8 31.5 63.2 32.9 63.2
School Wide 82.4 90.63 81.85 91.73

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

In year 2 of PARCC, The Joseph Sears School saw a higher rate of participation in most grades
tested. In 2015-2016, 90.63% of eligible students took the ELA component of PARCC and
91.73% of eligible students took the math component of PARCC. Overall, the school increased
by 9% participation. Grade 8’s participation increased by over 30% on both components.
However, 8" grade participation rate remains low compared to other classes at Sears. The
general increase in participation bodes well for Sears as we aim to meet the 95% participation
rate.

Student Performance:

In comparison to other schools in Illinois, the students at Sears continue to outperform the state.
The number of student statewide scores in the meets and exceeds category is reflective of the
difficulty of PARCC. The 2015-16 school year Sears out performed the state in the number
students receiving 4’s or 5’s (meets and exceeds) in ELA with a margin of 27.9% to 53.6%
above the state average. In mathematics, Sears out performed the state in the number students
receiving 4’s or 5’s (meets and exceeds) a margin of 39.9% to 52.7% above the state average.

When looking at Sears’s performance in the Township, our performance demonstrates
comparable number of students falling into the meets and exceeds categories. In 6 out of 7 grade
levels in which the PARCC was administered, the school performed better than the township
average on ELA. In mathematics, the school performed better than the township average in 6 out
of 7 grade levels and comparable at one grade level. Sears continues to show strong academic
performance in the top two bands of achievement on the PARCC.

Next Steps — Areas for Targeted Improvement:

¢ Continue to encourage students and families to take PARCC assessment to attain 95%.

¢ Continue to monitor current 6th grade cohort for ELA (PARCC scores were lower, but
fall MAP performance shows on track). This cohort has shown continued growth since
initial assessments in 4™ grade.

* Review data to increase the number of students scoring ‘meets and exceed’ on both ELA
and math.

¢ Since 21.3% of students school wide increased their performance and 63% of students
remained the same, we will continue to review and find areas to support students in order
to continue to grow and sustain.

¢ Continue to monitor current grade 4 and current grade 5 in mathematics (22% and 18.2%
of students decreased in performance respectively.)

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

NWEA MAP
The Assessment:
The NWEA MAP (Northwest Evaluation Association) MAP (Measures of Academic Progress)
was adopted during the 2014-15 school year. This assessment met the need of a school wide
assessment that would assist in monitoring student growth throughout the year. MAP/MPG is
taken on the computer and is a responsive to student performance. Levels of questions adjust as
students get answers correct or incorrect. The results provide teachers with the instructional
level of each student that connects to performance on content standards.

The various levels are identified with a RIT score, which is directly connected to a National
percentile. The RIT Scale uses individual item difficulty values to estimate student achievement.
It is designed to determine where each student is performing. These scores are normed to a
national percentile in alignment with national standards. The new norm table was published in
2015. Reports that accompany these norms assist us in being able to get data to make “z-score”
comparisons across RIT scores to look at a overall measures of growth.

Teachers can utilize online resources and tools in conjunction with MAP scores to monitor and
support student progress. MAP was selected to provide valuable information regarding a
student’s growth over time in the core areas of reading, language and mathematics. Students will
take the MAP assessment from February 27-March 10, 2017. Beginning in March, the MAP
reporting process will also consist of a growth component.

Participation:
During the SY 2014-15, we began MAP testing grades 3rd thru 8". Upon review of the data and

the excitement regarding the information we were able to see, 2™ grade asked to be included and
began testing that winter. In addition, first grade asked to be included during the 2™ year of
assessment. Currently, all eligible students grades 1 thru 8 participate in the MAP/MPG
assessment.

The assessment is untimed and students are able to work at their own pace. The majority of
students finish between 36-58 minutes. We do have kids outside that window. Students are
eligible for testing modifications for this assessment.

Student Performance:

MAP/MPG continues to provide us data relative to student growth. While grade level averages
fall in the 98-99 percentile when we begin to look at the Conditional Growth Percentile, we are
able to identify how our students are performing relative to students who perform similarly to
them. The student mean Conditional Growth Percentile ranges from 48" to 79" depending on
grade level and content area. The Conditional Growth Percentile enables a comparison between
grades or groups by putting them on an equal scale. This measurement ranks grade-level growth
observed across all matching schools within the NWEA norms study.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

In mathematics, 6 out of 7 grade levels met or exceeded RIT growth when looking at observed
growth relative to projected growth. In reading, one out of five grades met RIT growth
projections and in Language, 6 out of 6 met or approached RIT growth.

With this year’s iteration, NWEA provides additional reports that allow the school to break down
the data and sub-strands to set goals for each learner. This year’s interation also provides reports
that are predictors of performance on both the ACT and PARCC.

Next Steps:
* Review Quadrant Chart data will all grades/subjects to review the correlation between

growth and performance

* Review the math data for grade 2, 3 and 6. Comparison data indicates a potential need
for additional support.

* Review the reading results and gather any data trends to include as we begin to look at
scope and sequence for reading curriculum

 Review the language supports grades 2"4-5"

Other Assessments during SY 2016-17:

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Principal

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Kenilworth School District No. 38
Annual Assessment Calendar
Updated October 2016

Assessment Grades Administration Mandating Time Purpose
Entity
MAP 2nd Grade through 8th Grade September and District/School | 120 to 180 minutes | Inform instruction
March depending on and inform math
grade level and placement for 6th
beyond that since it | grade
is untimed
CoGat 3rd Grade and 5th Grade October School 90 minutes Inform instruction
and math
placement for 6th
grade
PARCC 3rd Grade through 8th Grade April State 8.5-13 hours Inform instruction
and math
placement for 6th
grade
lllinois Science | 5th Grade and 8th Grade April State 60 minutes State compliance
Assessment
(ISA)
AimsWeb Kindergarten through 4th Grade | September School 20 minutes Inform instruction
ACCESS Kindergarten through 8th ELL January State 180 minutes ELL placement
eligible students and to inform
instruction

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT




	KSD38 Committee of the Whole Board Meeting Agenda 102716
	Minutes 9-19-16 (Open Session)
	Potential Facilities Projects Memo 102716
	Strategic Plan Update Memo 102716
	Fall Data Review Memo 102716

